# **LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 3**

Tuesday 30<sup>th</sup> October, 2012 at 10.20 am in The Council Chamber, The Council House, Dudley

# PRESENT:-

Councillors Bills, Cowell and Taylor

# **Officers**

Mr R Clark (Legal Advisor), Mrs J Elliott (Licensing Officer) and Mrs K Taylor (Directorate of Corporate Resources).

## Also in attendance

Councillor Herbert (observer) and a member of the press.

# 14. <u>ELECTION OF CHAIR</u>

In the absence of the chair (Councillor K Finch) it was

#### **RESOLVED**

That Councillor Bills be elected Chair for this meeting of the Sub-Committee only.

(Councillor Bills in the Chair)

### 15. <u>APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE</u>

Apologies for absence from the meeting were received on behalf of Councillors M. Aston, K. Finch and James.

# 16. APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

It was reported that Councillors Bills, Cowell and Taylor had been appointed as substitute Members for Councillors M. Aston, K. Finch and James respectively for this meeting of the Sub-Committee only.

### 17. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No member declared an interest in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct.

# 18. <u>MINUTES</u>

#### **RESOLVED**

That, the minutes of the meeting held on 25<sup>th</sup> September 2012, be approved as a correct record and signed.

# 19. <u>APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE – 135 PRIORY</u> ROAD, DUDLEY

A report of the Director of Corporate Resources was submitted to consider an application for the review of a premises licence in respect of 135 Priory Road, Dudley.

Mr T Raj, Designated Premises Supervisor, was in attendance together with his Solicitor, Mr D Campbell and a supporter.

Also in attendance were Mr C King, Principal Trading Standards Officer and Mr G Wintrip, Age Restricted Products Enforcement Officer, both from the Directorate of the Urban Environment.

Following introductions, Mrs J Elliott, Licensing Officer, Directorate of Corporate Resources, presented the report on behalf of the Council.

Mr King presented the representations of Trading Standards and in doing so highlighted that the grounds for the review had been based on the undermining of the two licensing objectives, namely, the prevention of crime and disorder and the protection of children from harm due to the poor management of the premises following the sale of alcohol to a person under the age of eighteen.

Mr King informed the Sub-Committee that on 15<sup>th</sup> August, 2012, a sixteen year old child test purchaser had been sold alcohol from the premises contrary to section 146(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 and in direct contravention to the licensing objectives

It was further noted that on 1<sup>st</sup> July, 2011 and 3<sup>rd</sup> February, 2012 complaints had been submitted alleging that alcohol had been sold to underage persons.

Mr King stated that on 4<sup>th</sup> May, 2012 a test purchase exercise had been conducted at the premises, where no sale had been made.

On 10<sup>th</sup> July, 2012 an officer from Trading Standards carried out a visit to the premises and spoke to a Miss H Randhewa, who was an employee and niece of the Designated Premises Supervisor, Mr Raj. It was noted that Mr Raj was not at the premises. The purpose of the visit was to provide advice in relation to preventing underage sales of age restricted products, information in respect of acceptable proof of age and the importance of keeping a refusals register. Miss Randhewa was provided with an information pack that included an advice booklet, a Challenge 25 poster, a refusals register, a poster about proof of age and a sample Proof of Age Standards Scheme card, and was requested to deliver the information to Mr Raj to ensure that all staff were aware of their obligations under the Licensing Act 2003. She was also informed that test purchasing was carried out at premises. It was reported that during the course of this visit, Miss Randhewa signed a form to acknowledge receipt of the information pack.

Mr King further stated that on 15<sup>th</sup> August, 2012, Trading Standards together with West Midlands Police, carried out a test purchasing exercise to determine compliance with the law on the sale of alcohol to children. On that occasion, a sixteen year old female test purchaser volunteer purchased a 70cl bottle of Caribbean Twist Mixed Mango drink, 4% alcohol by volume. The seller made no attempt to ask the age of the volunteer, and did not ask for identification.

Following the sale, and having returned to the premises, it was discovered that the individual who sold the alcohol to the test purchaser had been a Miss K Kaur. It was noted that Mr Raj was not present at the premises at the time of the sale.

During the questioning of Miss Kaur in respect of the sale, she stated that she had thought that the test purchaser volunteer appeared to be eighteen years old.

Mr Raj then attended the premises and spoke to officers where he confirmed that there was a refusals register for the premises but that he could not locate it. Mr Raj was also unable to produce any training records for the members of staff who worked at the premises.

It was further noted that on inspection of the premises, the only Age Restricted Products poster displayed was that relating to the offence of proxy sales.

Miss Kaur was then issued with a Fixed Penalty Notice.

Mr King further stated that on 17<sup>th</sup> August, 2012 Mr G Wintrip attended the premises following a request by Mr Raj who presented the refusals register which was seen to have a large number of entries listed.

A full list of proposed additional conditions which had been suggested by Trading Standards had been circulated to all parties prior to the meeting.

Reference was made to the additional information submitted prior to the meeting, in order to amplify concerns raised in relation to the poor management of the premises. Mr Campbell stated that the information supplied by a local resident was based on allegations and that there were no actual proof submitted.

Mr Campbell then referred to the suggested conditions submitted by Trading Standards, and confirmed that Mr Raj accepted all conditions except for condition number eight which stated that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence at a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold the Level Two Award for Designated Premises Supervisors. Mr Campbell stated that this condition was not necessary, as it had been confirmed that Mr Raj had previously undertaken the training.

In responding to a question by Mr Campbell, Mr King confirmed that by implementing the conditions it might address the concerns expressed by Trading Standards.

Mr Campbell then presented the case on behalf of Mr Raj, and in doing so stated that Mr Raj had taken the matter seriously, and accepted that the sale on 15<sup>th</sup> August, 2012 had taken place by Miss Kaur.

Reference was made to the statement submitted by Mr Raj, which had been circulated to all parties prior to the meeting, in particular of the training programme that would be implemented. It was noted that employees would be retrained and within a week they would be expected to complete a competency test together with a document to be signed to confirm their understanding of the law.

It was further noted that Mr Raj had intended to operate the Challenge 25 policy, maintain the refusals register, retain CCTV footage to allow any reasonable authority to review, and to display all appropriate signage in the premises.

Reference was then made to conditions submitted which had been suggested by West Midlands Police, Mr Campbell confirmed that Mr Raj was agreeable to all conditions except for the condition that stated that a SIA trained person to be at the store from the hours of 1900 hours until closing, as it would be inappropriate to include this as a condition of licence.

It was noted that Mr Raj had been the victim of serious crime, and had been assaulted resulting in injury by robbers and recently there had been an attempted robbery at the premises, resulting in Mr Raj engaging the services of a SIA registered door supervisor.

In responding to a question by Mr Campbell, Mr Raj confirmed that he understood that if he breached any conditions of licence then the Sub-Committee would review the matter and that he regretted that the sale had been made.

In responding to comments made by Mr Campbell in respect of the condition submitted by West Midlands Police in regard to the SIA registered person being present at the premises, the Licensing Officer confirmed that it would not be appropriate to attach the condition on the licence.

In responding to comments made in regard to the training adopted before and after the sale, Mr Campbell stated that training had been developed following the sale on 15<sup>th</sup> August, and although training had taken place prior to the sale it had not been documented.

In responding to a question by a member in regard to how vigorous the competency test was for employees, Mr Campbell confirmed that the test would ensure all employees understood the law and implications following a sale of age restricted products to underaged persons. He further confirmed that Mr Raj had delivered the training and all employees had passed the test.

Concerns were raised in regard to the lack of training to members of staff and Mr Raj's understanding of the training that he had undertaken whilst obtaining his Personal Licence, Mr Campbell responded by indicating that training had now been implemented and referred to the test purchase exercise on 4<sup>th</sup> May, 2012 which had resulted in a refusal of sale.

In responding to a question by a member in relation to the employment of Miss Kaur, Mr Raj confirmed that Miss Kaur had been employed for three to four weeks when the sale on 15<sup>th</sup> August, 2012 had taken place and although she had received training she had made a mistake on that day. It was further noted that at the time of the sale, Miss Kaur was the only member of staff at the premises.

In responding to a question by the Licensing Officer, Mr Campbell confirmed that Mr Raj undertook the evening shift alongside the SIA register door supervisor, and during the day there were one member of staff at the premises, which Mr Raj considered to be sufficient.

Mr King then referred to Mr Raj's statement that he did not accept condition eight, as there had been conflicting statements made today that indicated that Mr Raj had undertaken a Level Two Award for Designated Premises Supervisor, and that he was concerned that if Mr Raj had undertaken the training that it had not been implemented or understood correctly. Mr Campbell stated that Mr Raj did not realise he had taken the qualification, and that as it was confirmed that he had received training there were no reason to attach the condition to his licence.

In responding to comments made by the Legal Advisor in regard to the condition in regard to the Level Two Award and given that Mr Raj held the qualification the condition would not be imposing anything that Mr Raj would have to undertake, Mr Campbell stated that Mr Raj would be agreeable for the condition to be attached to the licence.

In responding to a question by the Legal Advisor, Mr Raj confirmed that Miss Randhewa did inform him of the visit by Trading Standards on 10<sup>th</sup> July, 2012, but failed to mention that test purchase exercises would be carried out at the premises in the future. He also confirmed that the information pack presented to Miss Randhewa had been given to Mr Raj, however Mr Raj did not read all the contents, as he did not understand the information.

In responding to a question by the Legal Advisor in regard to the failure to locate the refusals register following the sale on 15<sup>th</sup> August, 2012, Mr Raj stated that the refusals register was placed under the counter, however it had been misplaced within a large amount of paperwork. It was further noted that Miss Kaur was aware that the register was under the counter, but that she had been confused.

Reference was made to comments made and it was apparent that the issues raised were not primarily in regard of one unlawful sale, but of the poor management of the premises by Mr Raj.

Following comments made in regard to the number of entries on the refusals register, Mr Raj confirmed that on average two to three underaged persons per week attended the premises in order to purchase alcohol, but that the refusals had been entered into the register. Mr Raj then presented the refusals register for the Sub-Committee to view.

Mr Wintrip then referred to comments made by Mr Campbell and informed the Sub-Committee that when he requested the refusals register Miss Kaur was unable to locate it, and that there were only one poster on display at the premises in respect of proxy sales. It was noted that when Mr Wintrip revisited the premises on 17<sup>th</sup> August, 2012, there were posters displayed in regard to Challenge 25.

In summing up, Mr Campbell stated that Mr Raj accepted that there was a sale of alcohol to an underaged person on 15<sup>th</sup> August, 2012 and that he considered it to be a mistake. He further stated that the employee responsible for the sale, Miss Kaur, was no longer employed by Mr Raj, and that all employees had now been trained and tested. Mr Campbell asked that the Sub-Committee consider that the modification of Mr Raj's licence by implementing the conditions suggested by Trading Standards and West Midlands Police would address the concerns raised rather than revocation or suspension.

In responding to a question by the Chair, all parties confirmed that they had a fair hearing.

Following comments from all parties, the Legal Advisor stated that the Sub-Committee would determine the application made on the information submitted and comments made at the meeting by all parties.

The parties then withdrew from the meeting in order to enable the Sub-Committee to determine the application.

The Sub-Committee having made their decision, invited the parties to return and the Chair then outlined the decision.

#### **RESOLVED**

That, subject to the following conditions being applied to the premises licence, no further action to be taken in relation to the review of the premises licence in respect of 135 Priory Road, Dudley: -

- (1) A Challenge 25 policy will be operated at the premises whereby any individual attempting to purchase alcohol who appears to be under 25 years of age will be asked to provide valid identification to prove they are 18 years or older. All staff must be aware of this policy.
- (2) Valid proof of identification only to include passport, photographic driving licence or a Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) proof of age card such as Citizen card. No other form of identification shall be accepted.
- (3) Publicity materials notifying customers of the operation of the "Challenge 25" scheme shall be displayed at the premises, including a "Challenge 25" sign of at least A4 size at each point of sale.
- (4) A4 notices to be displayed on the door to the premises and near the point of sale stating that it is an offence to buy alcohol for persons under the age of 18.
- (5) A Register of Refusals of Sale of Alcohol which indicates the date, time and reason for refusal will be operated and maintained at the premises. The Premises Licence Holder shall check the book once a week ensuring it is completed and up-to-date. The Premises Licence Holder will sign the book each time it is checked. This book shall be made available for inspection by an officer of the Trading Standards Department and/or Police.
- (6) CCTV to be in place at the premises to the specifications of the West Midlands Police – Crime Reduction Officer so that the alcohol display area and the point off sale area can be viewed. All images are to be recorded and kept for a minimum of 28 days and made available to any responsible authority upon request within 24 hours.

- (7) The premises' CCTV shall be reviewed on a weekly basis in order to identify persons under the age of 18 who are attempting to buy alcohol or persons over the age of 18 buying on their behalf. A record of these checks shall be maintained and be available for inspection upon request by an officer of the Trading Standards Department and/or Police. All staff are to be trained to work the CCTV and are able to download when required to do so and the cameras are to be operational during working hours.
- (8) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence at a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold the Level 2 Award for Designated Premises Supervisors. Proof of qualification shall be provided to the Police and/or an officer of the Trading Standards Department upon request.
- (9) All persons engaged to sell alcohol will have completed a training programme which included a written test to verify the competency of that person prior to them being authorised to sell alcohol.
- (10) The premises licence holder shall ensure that monthly reviews are conducted with any persons authorised to sell alcohol in order to reinforce training, promote best practice and policy.
- (11) A file shall be maintained at the premises for each person authorised to sell alcohol. This file shall contain all training records for each person along with copies of monthly reviews as stated in point 10. This file shall be available for inspection an officer the Trading Standards Department and/or Police upon request.

# REASON FOR DECISION

The Sub-Committee has listened to significant evidence from both parties to this review application. Mr Raj has accepted the underage sale in August, 2012 and the Sub-Committee also notes that there was a test purchase in May 2012 when the purchase was refused.

Mr Raj has also accepted that he has not fully implemented his level 2 Designated Premises Supervisor training undertaken two years ago delivered by Wolverhampton City Council. He did not fully read the information pack given to him by Trading Standards in July 2012. Specifically, the refusals register was not available for the member of staff on the day of the test purchase or to Trading Standards. The only poster on display was on proxy sales.

The Sub-Committee accepts that the conditions put forward by trading standards will address the concerns highlighted by this underage sale and they are reasonable and proportionate. Mr Raj agrees all of these conditions except number eight which refers to the Level 2 Designated Premises Supervisors training, which he says he has undertaken, and this is accepted. However, the Sub-Committee has attached this as a general condition of licence. The Sub-Committee also strongly recommends that Mr Raj undertakes the level 2 training again upon his apparent admission that he did not recall undertaking this training and had not implemented it.

# 20. <u>APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE – 24 PRIORY</u> ROAD, DUDLEY

A report of the Director of Corporate Resources was submitted to consider an application for the review of a premises licence in respect of 24 Priory Road, Dudley.

Mrs T Raguvannan, Designated Premises Supervisor, was in attendance together with her Solicitor, Mr P Burke and her husband, Mr R Rasuathurai.

Also in attendance were Mr C King, Principal Trading Standards Officer and Mr G Wintrip, Age Restricted Products Enforcement Officer, both from the Directorate of the Urban Environment.

Following introductions, Mrs J Elliott, Licensing Officer, Directorate of Corporate Resources, presented the report on behalf of the Council.

Mr King presented the representations of Trading Standards and in doing so highlighted that the grounds for the review had been based on the undermining of the two licensing objectives, namely, the prevention of crime and disorder and the protection of children from harm due to the poor management of the premises following the sale of alcohol to a person under the age of eighteen.

Mr King informed the Sub-Committee that on 15<sup>th</sup> August, 2012, a sixteen year old child test purchaser had been sold alcohol from the premises contrary to section 146(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 and in direct contravention to the licensing objectives

It was further noted that on 14<sup>th</sup> May, 2010 additional conditions were attached to the premises licence following the sale of alcohol to a fifteen year old test volunteer, at this time the premises were owned by different owners and a different Designated Premises Supervisor. It was noted that the premises subsequently closed on 27<sup>th</sup> April, 2011.

Mr King further stated that Mrs Raguvannan currently lived in Northampton.

On 10<sup>th</sup> July, 2012 an officer from Trading Standards carried out a visit to the premises and spoke to a Mr S Nagahara, Mrs Raguvannan was not at the premises at that time. The purpose of the visit was to provide advice in relation to preventing underage sales of age restricted products, information in respect of acceptable proof of age and the importance of keeping a refusals register. Mr Nagahara was provided with an information pack that included an advice booklet, a Challenge 25 poster, a refusals register, a poster about proof of age and a sample Proof of Age Standards Scheme card, and was requested to deliver the information to Mrs Raguvannan to ensure that all staff were aware of their obligations under the Licensing Act 2003. He was also informed that test purchasing was carried out at premises. It was reported that during the course of this visit, Mr Nagahara signed a form to acknowledge receipt of the information pack.

Mr King further stated that on 15<sup>th</sup> August, 2012, Trading Standards together with West Midlands Police, carried out a test purchasing exercise to determine compliance with the law on the sale of alcohol to children. On that occasion, a sixteen year old female test purchaser volunteer purchased a 700ml bottle of WKD Blue, 4% alcohol by volume. The seller made no attempt to ask the age of the volunteer, and did not ask for identification.

Following the sale, and having returned to the premises, it was discovered that the individual who sold the alcohol to the test purchaser had been a Mr R Rasuathurai, who informed officers that he lived at the premises. It was noted that Mrs Raguvannan was not present at the premises at the time of the sale.

During the questioning in regard of the sale, Mr Rasuathurai had difficulty in responding due to his apparent poor English but did not deny selling the alcohol. He was unable to produce any evidence of formal training but did admit that he knew that a person needed to be eighteen to purchase alcohol.

It was further noted that on inspection of the premises it was ascertained that the old premises licence was displayed, there were no Age Restricted Products poster displayed and there were no entries listed in the refusals register since it had been issued on 10<sup>th</sup> July, 2012.

It was further noted that the bottle of WKD Blue purchased by the volunteer did not display any label identifying the premises as specified in the conditions which had been attached to the premises licence on 14<sup>th</sup> May, 2010.

Mr Rasuathurai was then issued with a Fixed Penalty Notice.

Mr King further stated that Mrs Raguvannan had not contacted Trading Standards since the sale despite being requested to do so.

A full list of proposed additional conditions, which had been suggested by Trading Standards, had been circulated to all parties prior to the meeting.

At this juncture, the Licensing Officer informed the Sub-Committee that an application had been granted on 24<sup>th</sup> October, 2012 for the transfer of the Designated Premises Supervisor from Mrs Raguvannan to Mr Rasuathurai.

Mr Burke then presented the case on behalf of Mrs Raguvannan, and in doing so stated that Mrs Raguvannan and Mr Rasuathurai operated another premises in Northampton for five years and there had been no issues or concerns. He also informed the Sub-Committee that Mr Rasuathurai was not the seller identified on 15<sup>th</sup> August, 2012, and that it was a Mr S Nagahara who gave a false name to officers and West Midlands Police. It was noted that Mr Nagahara was no longer employed at the premises.

In view of the new information presented to the Sub-Committee in particular that Mr Rasuathurai is now the Designated Premises Supervisor, and the claim that he had not been the seller on 15<sup>th</sup> August, 2012, the Sub-Committee requested that the meeting be adjourned until 1.30pm.

All parties returned to the meeting at 1.35 pm.

Mr King referred to the information presented to the Sub-Committee earlier in the meeting, and stated that he was satisfied that the seller on 15<sup>th</sup> August, 2012 was not Mr Rasuathurai and was Mr Nagahara, which was also confirmed by Mr Wintrip who had been present at the time of the sale.

Reference was made to the Fixed Penalty Notice given to Mr Nagahara, Mrs Raguvannan confirmed that she had paid the fixed penalty notice as she considered it was her duty given that the sale had occurred at the premises. Mr Wintrip confirmed that he would liaise with the West Midlands Police in respect of the false information given.

Mr Burke then proceeded to inform the Sub-Committee of his clients background, and in doing so stated that the main reason for Mr Rasuathurai to be confirmed as the Designated Premises Supervisor was due to him becoming more involved with the premises than Mrs Raguvannan, as she would continue to be the Designated Premises Supervisor in Northampton.

In responding to a question by a member, Mr Burke confirmed that both Mrs Raguvannan and Mr Rasuathurai lived in Northampton, and that there were one member of staff who worked at the premises who was reliable and currently obtaining his personal licence.

Reference was made to the statement submitted by West Midlands Police in particular concerns raised in regard to the attempts to access the CCTV, the reporting of the hard drive being stolen, and that Mrs Raguvannan and Mr Rasuathurai had been uncooperative. Mr Burke stated that the statement was incorrect and that his clients had submitted all information relating to Mr Nagahara to West Midlands Police.

It was further noted that a training system would be implemented which would be delivered by both Mrs Raguvannan and Mr Rasuathurai.

Mr Burke then referred to the suggested conditions submitted by Trading Standards and West Midlands Police, and confirmed that his clients accepted all conditions and suggested that two additional conditions be attached to the licence.

- (1) That a Personal Licence Holder be present at the premises at all times.
- (2) That all members of staff to be trained to download CCTV data in order to be reviewed.

Mr Burke further stated that Mrs Raguvannan and Mr Rasuathurai had been disappointed by members of staff who they had trusted at the premises.

Concerns were raised in regard to Mrs Raguvannan and Mr Rasuathurai residing in Northampton and the management of the premises. Mrs Raguvannan stated that she was unable to relocate to Dudley, but that Mr Rasuathurai would be attending the premises on a daily basis and residing at the premises at weekends. Mr Burke further confirmed that there would be one member of staff who had been employed at the premises since it had opened who would supervise in Mr Rasuathurai's absence.

Reference was made to the West Midlands Police statement, which stated that the CCTV system had been concealed under a suspended ceiling in the premises rendering it impracticable to access. Mrs Raguvannan stated that the ceiling tile was not fixed and easily accessible, and that she did not provide staff with access to passwords, as she feared the staff could have deleted data. She further stated that she had since trained a member of staff to access the data and provided him with a password.

The Licensing Officer informed the Sub-Committee that the additional conditions attached to the premises licence on 14<sup>th</sup> May, 2010 would have been transferred to Mrs Raguvannan's premises licence.

In responding to a question by Mr Wintrip, Mr Burke confirmed that Mr Rasuathurai did obtain a Level 2 Award for Designated Premises Supervisor.

In summing up, Mr Burke stated that Mr Rasuathurai had now become the Designated Premises Supervisor and therefore would have more involvement with the premises. He further stated that Mr Rasuathurai and Mrs Raguvannan had been let down by former members of staff and wished to mirror their success from Northampton to Dudley.

In responding to a question by the Chair, all parties confirmed that they had a fair hearing.

Following comments from all parties, the Legal Advisor stated that the Sub-Committee would determine the application made on the information submitted and comments made at the meeting by all parties.

The parties then withdrew from the meeting in order to enable the Sub-Committee to determine the application.

The Sub-Committee having made their decision, invited the parties to return and the Chair then outlined the decision.

#### **RESOLVED**

That, subject to the following conditions being amended to the premises licence, no further action to be taken in relation to the review of the premises licence in respect of 24 Priory Road, Dudley:

- (1) Publicity materials notifying customers of the operation of the "Challenge 25" scheme shall be displayed at the premises, including a "Challenge 25" sign of at least A4 size at each point of sale.
- (2) Valid proof of identification only to include passport, photographic driving licence (picture card) or a Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) proof of age card such as Citizen card.
- (3) A4 notices to be displayed on the door to the premises where the alcohol is being offered for sale and near the point of sale stating "if you look under 25 please do not be offended if we ask for proof of age when you buy alcohol".
- (4) A4 notices to be displayed on the door to the premises and near the point of sale stating that it is an offence to buy alcohol for persons under the age of 18.
- (5) A Register of Refusals of Sale of Alcohol which indicates the date, time and reason for refusal will be operated and maintained at the premises. The Premises Licence Holder shall check the book once a week ensuring it is completed and up-to-date. The Premises Licence Holder will sign the book each time it is checked. This book shall be made available for inspection by an officer of the Trading Standards Department and/or Police.

- (6) CCTV to be in place at the premises to the specifications of the West Midlands Police – Crime Reduction Officer so that the alcohol display area and the point off sale area can be viewed. All images are to be recorded and kept for a minimum of 28 days and made available to any responsible authority upon request within 24 hours.
- (7) The DPS or a named responsible person shall review the premises' CCTV on a daily basis in order to identify persons under the age of 18 who are attempting to buy alcohol or persons over the age of 18 buying on their behalf. A record of these checks shall be maintained and be available for inspection upon request by a responsible authority and all staff are to be trained in respect of the workings of the CCTV and are able to download recordings when required to do so.
- (8) The DPS shall ensure that all persons authorised to sell alcohol will have completed a training programme which includes a written test to verify the competency of that person.
- (9) The DPS shall conduct monthly reviews with any persons authorised to sell alcohol in order to reinforce training, promote best practice and policy.
- (10) The DPS shall maintain a file at the shop premises for each person authorised to sell alcohol. This file shall contain all training records for each person along with copies of monthly reviews as stated in point 9. This file shall be available for inspection by any responsible authority upon request.
- (11) All alcohol sold must be clearly labelled with the name of the premises.
- (12) Relevant checks must be made in respect of all staff to be employed, including full name, address, date of birth together with a photocopy of proof of identity (i.e. passport / driving licence).
- (13) A Personal Licence Holder will be present on the premises at all times.

# **REASON FOR DECISION**

The Sub-Committee has heard significant evidence presented by both parties.

The parties agreed today that the premises now have a new Designated Premises Supervisor, Mr Raguvannan Rasuathurai (DOB 21/10/79), from 24<sup>th</sup> October, 2012. The parties are also in agreement that Mr Raguvannan Rasuathurai was not the member of staff who made the underage sale on 15<sup>th</sup> August, 2012. It is alleged that the member of staff making the sale gave false details to the police and Trading Standards. The Sub-Committee has no reason to doubt any of this new information.

The Sub-Committee has concluded that the proposed conditions to the licence, which are agreed between the parties, should address the concerns, which have arisen, and are both reasonable and proportionate.

The Premises Licence Holder has today recognised that these premises have given rise to significantly more concerns and issues in ten months than their original premises have done in five years. For this reason, they recognise that the management of these premises require extra vigilance.

# 21 <u>APPLICATION FOR CONSENT TO ENGAGE IN STREET TRADING – MR</u> <u>AND MRS BRIDGEWATER – HIGH STREET / PECKINGHAM STREET,</u> HALESOWEN

A report of the Director of Corporate Resources was submitted on an application made by Mr and Mrs Bridgewater for the grant of consent to engage in street trading in High Street / Peckingham Street, Halesowen.

Mr and Mrs Bridgewater, Applicants, were in attendance at the meeting.

Also in attendance at the meeting was Mr P Vangeersdaele, Group Engineer - Traffic & Road Safety, Directorate of the Urban Environment.

Following introductions the Licensing Officer presented the report on behalf of the Council.

Following a brief discussion it was

#### **RESOLVED**

That the application made by Mr and Mrs Bridgewater for the grant of consent to engage in street trading in High Street / Peckingham Street, Halesowen be approved.

**CHAIR**